
 

 

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 

will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given 

below. 

 

 

Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 

Members: 

 
City Personnel: 

 

 
Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Monday, July 1, 2019 @ 6:00 pm 
Hall of Fame Room (381 E Main St, Stoughton WI 53589) 
Lisa Reeves (Chair), Matt Bartlett (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Thomas Majewski and Mayor 
Timothy Swadley (ex-officio member) 

Director Gillingham 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Call to Order 
 

2 Approval of the Monday, June 3, 2019 Personnel Committee meeting minutes 
 

3 Communications/Updates 
 

4 Discussion and possible action regarding Employee Response Requirements Policy 
update  

 

5 Discussion and possible action regarding Promotion Policy update 
 

6 Discussion and possible action regarding Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring 
Employees Policy update 

 

7 Discussion and possible action regarding Reference & Background Check Policy update 
 

8 Discussion and possible action regarding Employment of Relatives Policy update 
 

9 Discussion and possible action regarding Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions 
update 

 

10 Discussion and possible action regarding Hiring Policy – Leadership update 
 

 

11 Discussion and possible action regarding adding verbiage regarding last day worked to 
Termination Policy 
 

12 Discussion and possible action regarding Vacation Termination Policy update 
 

13 Discussion regarding Parks & Recreation Department structure 
 

14 Future Agenda Items 
 

 Accrued Sick Leave/Retirement 

 Work rules update and on-call status 

 Email/Electronic vs paper paystubs 

 Timesheet Entry 
 

15 Adjournment 
 
 
 

 

** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or 
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises 
responsibility. 
 
If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.  
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
NOTE:  For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m.  If you need to enter 
City Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 





 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given 


below. 


 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 


Members: 


 
City Personnel: 


 


 
Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Monday, July 1, 2019 @ 6:00 pm 
Hall of Fame Room (381 E Main St, Stoughton WI 53589) 
Lisa Reeves (Chair), Matt Bartlett (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Thomas Majewski and Mayor 
Timothy Swadley (ex-officio member) 


Director Gillingham 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


1 Call to Order 
 


2 Approval of the Monday, June 3, 2019 Personnel Committee meeting minutes 
 


3 Communications/Updates 
 


4 Discussion and possible action regarding Employee Response Requirements Policy 
update  


 


5 Discussion and possible action regarding Promotion Policy update 
 


6 Discussion and possible action regarding Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring 
Employees Policy update 


 


7 Discussion and possible action regarding Reference & Background Check Policy update 
 


8 Discussion and possible action regarding Employment of Relatives Policy update 
 


9 Discussion and possible action regarding Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions 
update 


 


10 Discussion and possible action regarding Hiring Policy – Leadership update 
 


 


11 Discussion and possible action regarding adding verbiage regarding last day worked to 
Termination Policy 
 


12 Discussion and possible action regarding Vacation Termination Policy update 
 


13 Discussion regarding Parks & Recreation Department structure 
 


14 Future Agenda Items 
 


 Accrued Sick Leave/Retirement 


 Work rules update and on-call status 


 Email/Electronic vs paper paystubs 


 Timesheet Entry 
 


15 Adjournment 
 
 
 


 


** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or 
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises 
responsibility. 
 
If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.  
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
NOTE:  For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m.  If you need to enter 
City Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 








 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 3, 2019 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom – Stoughton 
 


Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Matt Bartlett (Vice-Chair), Thomas Majewski, Sid Boersma, Mayor Swadley, and Director 
Gillingham  
Also in Attendance: Ryan Wiesen 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. 
 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the Monday, April 1, 2019 Personnel Committee meeting 


Motion to approve Boersma, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 


3. Election of Chair  
Majewski nominated Reeves, second by Boersma.  All in Favor 5-0 
 


4. Election of Vice-Chair  
Reeves nominated Bartlett, second by Majewski.  All in Favor 5-0 
 


5. Set meeting date & times  


Discussion regarding meeting being “bumped by other meetings” final decision:   Meetings to continue to occur 


on the 1st Monday of the month at 6pm.  


Motion by Boersma, second Majewski. All in Favor 5-0 


 


6. Communications 
Director Gillingham updated the committee on:  


 Grievance status 
 Recruiting update 
 Work Rules and new policy manual 
 Lawsuit update 
 Library Staffing update 
 Terminations (3) update 


 
Agenda items 8 & 9 were moved forward before item 7 to accommodate Ryan Wiesen who was attending for those 
items. 


 
 


7. Discussion and possible action regarding updated E-Mail & Electronic Communications Policy 
Director Gillingham reviewed the policies and explained that they were out of date. The changes bring  


the policy current.  Motion by Matt, 2nd by Tom, all in favor to accept the updated policy 


Motion by Bartlett, second Majewski, Approved 5-0 
 


8. Discussion and possible action regarding changes to Finance Assistant Director position description  


Overview regarding why the change should be made and what was changed in the position description  
Motion by Boersma, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 


9. Discussion and possible action regarding Finance Treasurer position description 
Discussed the update of the Assistant Finance Director Position Description and the removal of the Treasurer 


duties. 


Motion by Boersma, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 


 


 


 


 







 


 


10. Discussion and possible action regarding Parks & Recreation Troll Beach Lifeguard position description 
Discussion regarding Troll Beach at which time Director Gillingham told the Committee, she’d forgotten to 
mention one of the terminations so the total should be 4 for the month.  She shared that Kourtni Barnes had 
tenured her resignation.  It was requested by the Committee that at the July meeting the Personnel Committee 
review the Parks and Recreation Department Structure.  In the interim, Director Gillingham was instructed to 
contact other communities to find out how they are structured and to see if they have similar program offerings 
and parks management. The Committee had a short discussion regarding the current structure and discussed 
some concerns.  Personnel Committee Chair Reeves said we would continue this discussion at the next meeting.  
The Committee then moved on to item 10 and reviewed the position description.   
Motion by Boersma, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 


11. Future Agenda Items 
 


Discussion regarding Future agenda items. Director Gillingham gave an update and confirmed she would  
add the Parks and Recreation Department structure to her agenda. 
 


Motion to adjourn Boersma, second Majewski, Approved 5-0. Meeting adjourned 7:10pm. 


 


 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Employment of Relatives Policy  


 


Page:   1 


 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Employment of Relatives Policy  


1.0 Purpose 


In order to protect both employees and the City of Stoughton from unnecessary 


conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest, it is the policy of the 


City that a member of the immediate family (as defined below) of a City employee 


shall not be hired or serve in a position if either individual would have authority to 


hire, fire, supervise, or financially audit the work of the other; or if one would handle 


confidential materials which would create the appearance of improper or 


inappropriate access to that material by the other. For the purpose of this section, 


immediate family includes: spouse, son, daughter, stepchild, father, mother, step 


parent, brother, sister, grandparent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-


in-law, son-in-law or daughter-in-law or unrelated persons who are members of the 


employee’s household.[GS1] 


2.0 Policy Details 


When a prohibited working relationship arises after an individual is employed with the City, the 


employees will be given the opportunity to transfer to another department, if a position is 


available, or identify which employee shall resign from City employment. If the employees 


do not exercise their choice, the City will terminate one of the employees. 


Employees and applicants are expected to disclose these relationships whenever they may 


come into existence. Failure to do so may lead to discipline up to and including termination. 


Exceptions to this policy may be made if a prohibited working relationship arises after an 


individual is employed with the City and the only basis for the prohibited working relationship 


is that one employee has the authority to evaluate or review employment decisions of an 


immediate family member (e.g., compensation, promotion, discipline). In such cases, the 


authority to review such employment decisions shall be deferred to 


another appropriate supervisor or Department Head, if possible. The City shall have the sole 


authority to determine if any such alternative arrangement is possible or acceptable.[GS2] 


 


 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Employment of Relatives Policy  


 


Page:   2 


 


 


It shall also be the policy of the City of Stoughton to prohibit from hiring, for regular City 


employment, an immediate family member, as defined above, of any elected City official or 


Department Head Manager or Supervisor. In the event any City official or employee attempts to 


seek an unfair advantage or attempts to unduly influence any person with hiring authority, in 


the selection for City employment, such person shall be immediately reported to theDirector of 


Human Resources & Risk Management. 


This policy will not affect the Volunteer Fire and EMS Departments in hiring family members 


as volunteers. 


Persons employed by the City on the date of this policy shall not have their employment affected 


because of the adoption of this policy. However, any future personnel transactions shall be 


governed by this policy.[GS3] 


 


3.0 Procedures 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 


5.0 Document History 


 
 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions Page:   1 
 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions 
(Does Not Include Leadership) 


1.0 Purpose 
 


2.0 Policy Details 
The Department Director will review the position description to see if changes are 


needed. 


IF NO: Go to section one (1) "Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the 


Position Description". 


IF YES: Go to section two (2) "Recruiting for an Existing Position with Changes to the 


Position Description". 


If creating a new non-leadership position: Go to section three (3) "Creating a New Non-


Leadership Position with a New Position Description". 


NOTE: Police, Fire (excluding dispatchers), and Library personnel are hired by the Police 


and Fire Commission and Library boards, respectively, in accordance with state statutes. 


The Personnel Committee and City Council are not involved in the hiring of these 


positions. The Human Resources and Department Director works directly with the PFC and 


Library Boards in regards to job posting, candidate selection, interviews, background 


checks, and offer of employment. The Human Resources and Department Director 


reviews the position description and sets the schedule for hiring with the Department 


Director. 


 


I. Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the Position Description  


Leadership notifies the Human Resources and Department Director regarding the 


opening.  


See Procedure. 


completes the "Request for Personnel" Form and sends it to the Human Resources and 


Risk Management Director. If no changes are made: Human Resources will post the 


position. Recruiting occurs concurrently both internally and externally. The posting will 


take place on the City's Website and other advertising locations. An email regarding 


the open position is also sent to City Network employees and a hard copy posted at 


City Hall. 


All applications shall be submitted to Human Resources for review. The Director of 


Human Resources & Risk Management will review the applications. Human Resources 


will work with the Department Director or Designee to determine the number of 


candidates to be interviewed (minimum of one (1) up to five (5)). Human Resources 


and Department Director or Designee will select the interview panel. If possible, a 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions Page:   2 
 


member of Council will be present during interviews (does not include LTE, Part-time or 


Seasonal positions). 


Following the interview, the panel will discuss the candidates and determine if a second 


round of interviews is needed or if they have a recommendation for hire. Second 


interviews are not required. 


The final candidate is screened by Human Resources including: background check, 


drug/alcohol screening, physicals, reference verification and any other screening 


deemed necessary for the position. 


 


Human Resources will contact the final candidate to make the contingent offer 


and send a contingent offer letter of employment to the candidate. The offer 


will include the position title, compensation, status along with the start date and 


time. Orientation of the new employee will be conducted by Human Resources. 


 


 


II. Recruiting for an Existing position with Changes to the Position Description  


Leadership contacts completes the "Request for Personnel" Form and sends it to the 


Human Resources and Risk Management Director the opening along with the position 


description changes. The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management reviews the 


requested changes. 


Minor changes to Position Description: wordsmithing, adding duties of the same nature; 


with no grade level changes the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management will 


approve the changes and update the position description. Human Resources will start 


the recruiting process. 


Major changes to Position Description: new duties that will affect the grading of the 


position. Position description will be updated and graded. The Director of Human 


Resources & Risk Management will meet with the Department Director to discuss pay 


grade and if funding is available. If yes, position description will be presented to the 


Mayor, Personnel and Finance Committees. If approved, the Director of Human 


Resources & Risk Management will present to Council for final approval.  


If approved by Council approval the recruiting process will begin. 


See Procedure. 


 


III. Creating a New Non-Leadership Position with a New Position Description 


Request for a new position requires the advice of the Mayor and recommendation 


from the Personnel and Finance Committees to go to Council for final approval. The 


Department Director will work with the Director of Human Resources & Risk 


Management to write the position description Human Resources will complete the 


position grading. The Personnel Committee will be provided with a Position Description 


and recommended grade level. 


If denied by the Personnel or Finance Committee: no action will be taken. 


If approved by the Personnel Committee: The Director of Human Resources & Risk 


Management will forward the request to Council. The Council will be provided with the 


resolution a Position Description and recommended grade level.  







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions Page:   3 
 


If approved by Council approval the recruiting process will begin. 


See Procedure. 


3.0 Procedures 
Human Resources will post the position. Recruiting occurs concurrently both internally 


and externally. The posting will take place on the City's Website and other advertising 


locations. An email regarding the open position is also sent to City Network employees 


and a hard copy posted at City Hall. 


All applications shall be submitted to Human Resources for review. The Director of 


Human Resources & Risk Management will review the applications. 


Human Resources will work with the Department Director or Designee to determine the 


number of candidates to be interviewed (minimum of one (1) up to five (5)). Human 


Resources and Department Director or Designee will select the interview panel. If 


possible, a member of Council will be present during interviews (does not include LTE, 


Part-time or Seasonal positions). 


Following the interview, the panel will discuss the candidates and determine if a second 


round of interviews is needed or if they have a recommendation for hire. Second 


interviews are not required. 


The final candidate is screened by Human Resources including: background check, 


drug/alcohol screening, physicals, reference verification and any other screening 


deemed necessary for the position. 


Human Resources will contact the final candidate to make the contingent offer and 


send a contingent offer letter of employment to the candidate. The offer will include 


the position 


title, compensation, status along with the start date and time. Orientation of the new 


employee will be conducted by Human Resources.







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions Page:   4 
 


 


 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


5.0 Document History 
 


 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions Page:   1 
 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions 
(Does Not Include Leadership) 


1.0 Purpose 
 


2.0 Policy Details 
The Department Director will review the position description to see if changes are 


needed. 


IF NO: Go to section one (1) "Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the 


Position Description". 


IF YES: Go to section two (2) "Recruiting for an Existing Position with Changes to the 


Position Description". 


If creating a new non-leadership position: Go to section three (3) "Creating a New Non-


Leadership Position with a New Position Description". 


NOTE: Police, Fire (excluding dispatchers), and Library personnel are hired by the Police 


and Fire Commission and Library boards, respectively, in accordance with state statutes. 


The Personnel Committee and City Council are not involved in the hiring of these 


positions. The Human Resources and Department Director works directly with the PFC and 


Library Boards in regards to job posting, candidate selection, interviews, background 


checks, and offer of employment. The Human Resources and Department Director 


reviews the position description and sets the schedule for hiring with the Department 


Director. 


 


I. Recruiting for an Existing Position with No Changes to the Position Description  


Leadership notifies the Human Resources and Department Director regarding the 


opening.  


See Procedure. 


 


 


II. Recruiting for an Existing position with Changes to the Position Description  


Leadership contacts the Human Resources and Risk Management Director the opening 


along with the position description changes. The Director of Human Resources & Risk 


Management reviews the requested changes. 


Minor changes to Position Description: wordsmithing, adding duties of the same nature; 


with no grade level changes the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management will 


approve the changes and update the position description. Human Resources will start 


the recruiting process. 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions Page:   2 
 


Major changes to Position Description: new duties that will affect the grading of the 


position. Position description will be updated and graded. The Director of Human 


Resources & Risk Management will meet with the Department Director to discuss pay 


grade and if funding is available. If yes, position description will be presented to the 


Mayor, Personnel and Finance Committees. If approved, the Director of Human 


Resources & Risk Management will present to Council for final approval.  


If approved by Council approval the recruiting process will begin. 


See Procedure. 


 


III. Creating a New Non-Leadership Position with a New Position Description 


Request for a new position requires the advice of the Mayor and recommendation 


from the Personnel and Finance Committees to go to Council for final approval. The 


Department Director will work with the Director of Human Resources & Risk 


Management to write the position description Human Resources will complete the 


position grading. The Personnel Committee will be provided with a Position Description 


and recommended grade level. 


If denied by the Personnel or Finance Committee: no action will be taken. 


If approved by the Personnel Committee: The Director of Human Resources & Risk 


Management will forward the request to Council. The Council will be provided with the 


resolution a Position Description and recommended grade level.  


If approved by Council approval the recruiting process will begin. 


See Procedure. 


3.0 Procedures 
Human Resources will post the position. Recruiting occurs concurrently both internally 


and externally. The posting will take place on the City's Website and other advertising 


locations. An email regarding the open position is also sent to City Network employees 


and a hard copy posted at City Hall. 


All applications shall be submitted to Human Resources for review. The Director of 


Human Resources & Risk Management will review the applications. 


Human Resources will work with the Department Director or Designee to determine the 


number of candidates to be interviewed (minimum of one (1) up to five (5)). Human 


Resources and Department Director or Designee will select the interview panel. If 


possible, a member of Council will be present during interviews (does not include LTE, 


Part-time or Seasonal positions). 


Following the interview, the panel will discuss the candidates and determine if a second 


round of interviews is needed or if they have a recommendation for hire. Second 


interviews are not required. 


The final candidate is screened by Human Resources including: background check, 


drug/alcohol screening, physicals, reference verification and any other screening 


deemed necessary for the position. 


Human Resources will contact the final candidate to make the contingent offer and 


send a contingent offer letter of employment to the candidate. The offer will include 


the position 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions Page:   3 
 


title, compensation, status along with the start date and time. Orientation of the new 


employee will be conducted by Human Resources.







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy – Full & Part-Time Positions Page:   4 
 


 


 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


5.0 Document History 
 


 








 


 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy - Leadership Page:   1 
 


 


Hiring Policy - Leadership 


1.0 Purpose 
 


2.0 Policy Details& Procedure 
 


Hiring process for an existing Leadership Position: The Mayor and/or Director of Human Resources 


& Risk Management shall inform the Personnel Committee that a Leadership Position has been or 


will be vacated. The Mayor will notify the Council of the vacancy. The Mayor and the Director of 


Human Resources & Risk Management will review the position description and see if changes or 


updates are necessary. The Personnel Committee will meet to discuss the position description and 


review any potential changes. to the position description. If no changes to the Position 


Description: The Personnel Committee will provide the authorization for the Human Resources & 


Risk Management Director to move forward with the hiring process with no changes to the 


position description. If changes to the Position Description: The Mayor and Director of Human 


Resources & Risk Management will review the position description and make the requested 


changes to the Position Description to evaluate with the Personnel Committee. The Personnel 


Committee will review and may recommend additional changes. Provided the Personnel 


Committee votes to move the changes forward, the position description along with the 


recommended changes, would then be presented to the City Council for approval. 


If changes for the position description are approved by the Council: The Director of Human 


Resources & Risk Management will begin the recruiting process once the position description 


changes have been approved by the City Council. 


If changes for the position description are not approved by Council: No Action will be taken by 


Director of Human Resources to begin recruiting and will meet with the Mayor to discuss Council’s 


directive, if provided. 


 


Creating a new Leadership position: 


A new Leadership Position requires the advice of the Mayor, Human Resources / Risk 


Management Director and the Personnel Committee and with final approval of the Council. The 


Personnel Committee must be provided with a Job Title, Job Description and recommended pay 


range as provided by the Human Resources & Risk Management Director for review. After 


approval by the Personnel Committee the proposed Job Description and pay range must be 


approved by the Council before the recruiting process begins. Leadership positions to be filled in 


the Police or Fire Departments: Police and Fire Leadership positions are directed and approved by 


the Police and Fire Commission (PFC).  


 







 


 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy - Leadership Page:   2 
 


 


The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management receives direction from the PFC regarding 


the recruiting process. The Human Resources & Risk Management Director is to attend the 


interviews and PFC candidate selection meeting. The creation of the position description and 


approval to move forward with the hiring process must be approved by the Personnel and 


Council prior to recruiting and hiring. 


 


Leadership positions to be filled at the Library: Library Leadership positions are directed and 


approved by the Library Board. The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management receives 


direction from the Library Board regarding the recruiting process. The Human Resources & Risk 


Management Director is to attend the interviews and PFC candidate selection meeting. The 


creation of the position description and approval to move forward with the hiring process must be 


approved by the Personnel and Council prior to recruiting and hiring. Recruiting efforts will be 


initiated and managed by Human Resources Department and in consultation with the Personnel 


Committee and appropriate staff, in conformance to Federal, State and local requirements. 


 


Posting of the positions (new or replacement) internal and external recruiting will occur 


concurrently. The job posting will take place on the City’s Website and other advertising options 


such as websites and/or newspaper(s) and other recruiting venues. 


 


All applications shall be submitted to the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management for 


review. The Director of HR & RM will forward and review the applications with the Mayor and 


designees, if applicable, to determine which candidates will be interviewed. 


 


The Interview Panel will consist of the Mayor or designee, a Personnel Committee Alderson, if 


available, or non-Personnel Committee Alderperson. Other participants may include appropriate 


City employee(s) or non-city employee(s) with the appropriate technical/professional 


background. Director of Human Resources & Risk Management or Human Resources & Risk 


Management designee will participate in all interviews. The Interview Panel may help develop 


questions for the prospective interviewees and develop benchmark answers for those questions. 


The Director of Human Resources & Risk 


Management will provide the interview protocol and forms to be used by the Interview Panel. 


 


The Interview Panel will interview up to five (5) candidates. Following the interview the panel will 


discuss the candidates and determine if a second round of interviews are needed of if they have 


a recommendation for hire. It is recommended but not required that members of Leadership be 


given the opportunity to participate in the interview process through a second round of 


interviews. Final applicant or applicants for all Leadership positions are screened by Human 


Resources which includes: Background check, Drug/Alcohol screening, physicals, reference 


verification and any other screening of testing that is deemed necessary for the position. 


 







 


 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy - Leadership Page:   3 
 


 


Human Resources will send a contingent offer of employment to the candidate. The offer will 


include the position title, compensation, status along with the start date and time. Orientation of 


the new employee will be conducted by the Human Resources. The Orientation will include the 


required new hire paperwork. The Work Rules and Safety Rules will be distributed to the new 


employee and reviewed with the employee by the Leadership member for the Department or 


the immediately supervisor. Specific safety rules, all work rules and department specific polices will 


be reviewed and discussed with the Supervisor or Leadership. 


3.0 Procedures 
 


4.03.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


5.04.0 Document History 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 








 


 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy - Leadership Page:   1 
 


 


Hiring Policy - Leadership 


1.0 Purpose 
 


2.0 Policy & Procedure 
 


Hiring process for an existing Leadership Position: The Mayor and/or Director of Human Resources 


& Risk Management shall inform the Personnel Committee that a Leadership Position has been or 


will be vacated. The Mayor will notify the Council of the vacancy. The Mayor and the Director of 


Human Resources & Risk Management will review the position description and see if changes or 


updates are necessary. The Personnel Committee will meet to discuss the position description and 


review any potential changes. If no changes to the Position Description: The Personnel Committee 


will provide the authorization for the Human Resources & Risk Management Director to move 


forward with the hiring process with no changes to the position description. If changes to the 


Position Description: The Mayor and Director of Human Resources & Risk Management will review 


the position description and make the requested changes to the Position Description to evaluate 


with the Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee will review and may recommend 


additional changes. Provided the Personnel Committee votes to move the changes forward, the 


position description along with the recommended changes, would then be presented to the City 


Council for approval. 


If changes for the position description are approved by the Council: The Director of Human 


Resources & Risk Management will begin the recruiting process once the position description 


changes have been approved by the City Council. 


If changes for the position description are not approved by Council: No Action will be taken by 


Director of Human Resources to begin recruiting and will meet with the Mayor to discuss Council’s 


directive, if provided. 


 


Creating a new Leadership position: 


A new Leadership Position requires the advice of the Mayor, Human Resources / Risk 


Management Director and the Personnel Committee and with final approval of the Council. The 


Personnel Committee must be provided with a Job Title, Job Description and recommended pay 


range as provided by the Human Resources & Risk Management Director for review. After 


approval by the Personnel Committee the proposed Job Description and pay range must be 


approved by the Council before the recruiting process begins. Leadership positions to be filled in 


the Police or Fire Departments: Police and Fire Leadership positions are directed and approved by 


the Police and Fire Commission (PFC).  


 







 


 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy - Leadership Page:   2 
 


 


The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management receives direction from the PFC regarding 


the recruiting process. The Human Resources & Risk Management Director is to attend the 


interviews and PFC candidate selection meeting. The creation of the position description and 


approval to move forward with the hiring process must be approved by the Personnel and 


Council prior to recruiting and hiring. 


 


Leadership positions to be filled at the Library: Library Leadership positions are directed and 


approved by the Library Board. The Director of Human Resources & Risk Management receives 


direction from the Library Board regarding the recruiting process. The Human Resources & Risk 


Management Director is to attend the interviews and PFC candidate selection meeting. The 


creation of the position description and approval to move forward with the hiring process must be 


approved by the Personnel and Council prior to recruiting and hiring. Recruiting efforts will be 


initiated and managed by Human Resources Department and in consultation with the Personnel 


Committee and appropriate staff, in conformance to Federal, State and local requirements. 


 


Posting of the positions (new or replacement) internal and external recruiting will occur 


concurrently. The job posting will take place on the City’s Website and other advertising options 


such as websites and/or newspaper(s) and other recruiting venues. 


 


All applications shall be submitted to the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management for 


review. The Director of HR & RM will forward and review the applications with the Mayor and 


designees, if applicable, to determine which candidates will be interviewed. 


 


The Interview Panel will consist of the Mayor or designee, a Personnel Committee Alderson, if 


available, or non-Personnel Committee Alderperson. Other participants may include appropriate 


City employee(s) or non-city employee(s) with the appropriate technical/professional 


background. Director of Human Resources & Risk Management or Human Resources & Risk 


Management designee will participate in all interviews. The Interview Panel may help develop 


questions for the prospective interviewees and develop benchmark answers for those questions. 


The Director of Human Resources & Risk 


Management will provide the interview protocol and forms to be used by the Interview Panel. 


 


The Interview Panel will interview up to five (5) candidates. Following the interview, the panel will 


discuss the candidates and determine if a second round of interviews are needed of if they have 


a recommendation for hire. It is recommended but not required that members of Leadership be 


given the opportunity to participate in the interview process through a second round of 


interviews. Final applicant or applicants for all Leadership positions are screened by Human 


Resources which includes: Background check, Drug/Alcohol screening, physicals, reference 


verification and any other screening of testing that is deemed necessary for the position. 


 







 


 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 06/13/2017 


Policy Name:   Hiring Policy - Leadership Page:   3 
 


 


Human Resources will send a contingent offer of employment to the candidate. The offer will 


include the position title, compensation, status along with the start date and time. Orientation of 


the new employee will be conducted by the Human Resources. The Orientation will include the 


required new hire paperwork. The Work Rules and Safety Rules will be distributed to the new 


employee and reviewed with the employee by the Leadership member for the Department or 


the immediately supervisor. Specific safety rules, all work rules and department specific polices will 


be reviewed and discussed with the Supervisor or Leadership. 


 


3.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


4.0 Document History 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Termination Policy Page:   1 


 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Termination Policy  


1.0 Purpose 


2.0 Policy Details 


Voluntary termination is defined as an employee who for reasons of his/her own choosing 


elects not to continue in the employ of the City. Involuntary termination is defined as the City, 


for its own reasons, informing an employee in writing, that his/her services are no longer 


required. An employee who terminates should leave a forwarding address with the City 


Clerk/Personnel Director so W2’s can be mailed at the end of the year. Written notice of 


voluntary termination should be given to the Department Head with as much notice as 


practicable (2 weeks suggested/requested).  


Terminated employees must return ID cards, keys, and all provided personal protective 


equipment, training materials, and other provided materials to the City upon termination. 


Failure to do so will cause the employee to be billed for these items and for costs associated 


with security and other operational changes. Terminated employees will also be responsible 


for paying all bills associated with any City-sponsored plans (i.e. cell phone plans, fuel plans, 


etc.).  


Employees, when terminated from City employment, will be compensated at their current pay 


rate for earned and unused vacation accumulated and any compensation due to their credit 


on the next regularly scheduled payday. Sick time is not paid out at termination.  Sick time for 


retiree’s see retiree payout information in the Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employee 


Section.  The termination date is defined as the employee’s last day worked.  The termination 


date cannot be a vacation, sick or compensatory day.  The employee must physically work 


their last day in order for benefits to be extended through the end of the month in which they 


work.    


 


3.0 Procedures 


 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 


 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Termination Policy Page:   2 


 


5.0  


6.0 Document History 


 
 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Termination Policy Page:   1 


 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Termination Policy  


1.0 Purpose 


2.0 Policy Details 


Voluntary termination is defined as an employee who for reasons of his/her own choosing 


elects not to continue in the employ of the City. Involuntary termination is defined as the City, 


for its own reasons, informing an employee in writing, that his/her services are no longer 


required. An employee who terminates should leave a forwarding address with the City 


Clerk/Personnel Director so W2’s can be mailed at the end of the year. Written notice of 


voluntary termination should be given to the Department Head with as much notice as 


practicable (2 weeks suggested/requested).  


Terminated employees must return ID cards, keys, and all provided personal protective 


equipment, training materials, and other provided materials to the City upon termination. 


Failure to do so will cause the employee to be billed for these items and for costs associated 


with security and other operational changes. Terminated employees will also be responsible 


for paying all bills associated with any City-sponsored plans (i.e. cell phone plans, fuel plans, 


etc.).  


Employees, when terminated from City employment, will be compensated at their current pay 


rate for earned and unused vacation accumulated and any compensation due to their credit 


on the next regularly scheduled payday. Sick time is not paid out at termination.  Sick time for 


retiree’s see retiree payout information in the Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employee 


Section.  The termination date is defined as the employee’s last day worked.  The termination 


date cannot be a vacation, sick or compensatory day.  The employee must physically work 


their last day in order for benefits to be extended through the end of the month in which they 


work.    


3.0 Procedures 


 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 


 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Termination Policy Page:   2 


 


5.0  


6.0 Document History 


 
 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Vacation Termination Policy  


 


Page:   1 


 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Vacation Termination Policy  


1.0 Purpose 


2.0 Policy Details 


Eligible employees who terminate employment for any reason will receive a payout of their 


vacation and compensatory balance as of their last day of employment.  


Eligible employees who terminate employment for any reason will receive a pro-rated vacation 


benefit. The following procedure should be used when determining pro-rated vacations: 


 


 Employees that were hired before 1973 had vacations pro-rated when they started. On 


January 1 following their hire date, they received a pro-rated number of hours of the basic 40 


allowed. 


 


Example: Employee started July 1. On January 1 we would divide the day of the year, 182, by 


365 days, times 40 hours. That would equal 20 hours earned in year hired, credited and used 


after January 1 the following year. 


 


For each additional week eligible for, the same procedure would be followed. 


 


When you quit or retire, your vacation earned and credited on January 1 is 100% payable. If 


employee works past the first of the year, the pro-rated amount earned would also be payable. 


The procedure for pro-rating is the number of days worked past January 1, divided by 365, 


multiply by the number of hours of vacation allowed per year. 


 


 Employees hired after January 1,1973, receive 40 hours vacation on the first of January 


following date hired. 


 


Example: New employee started July 1, 1982, 40 hours vacation would be available to the 


employee on January 1, 1983. If employee quits or retires, pro-ration would be done from 


anniversary date to date of termination. 


 


Employee worked 60 days past anniversary date. 60 days divided by 365 days times 40 hours 


equals 6.4 hours payable to employee.  


 


If employee terminates 60 days prior to anniversary date, the same amount would be 


deducted from final check if vacation had already been used. 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Vacation Termination Policy  


 


Page:   2 


 


 


3.0 Procedures 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 


5.0 Document History 


 
 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Vacation Termination Policy  


 


Page:   1 


 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Vacation Termination Policy  


1.0 Purpose 


2.0 Policy Details 


Eligible employees who terminate employment for any reason will receive a payout of their 


vacation and compensatory balance as of their last day of employment.  


 


3.0 Procedures 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 


5.0 Document History 


 
 








 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Emergency Response Requirements Policy 


1.0 Purpose 
Response time is defined as the time it takes an employee to arrive at his/her place of work.  


 


2.0 Policy Details 
Response time requirements are as follows: 


 


 Police Department Non-Represented Employees (except Chief): Reside within 45 miles 


of the police department. 


 


 Police Chief: Establish residency within twelve (12) months of appointment. 


 


 Streets and ParksPublic Works Department Employees: Reside within  required response 


time of 30 minutes .20 mile radius of the City limits of Stoughton. 


 


 Stoughton Municipal Utilities Non-Represented and Represented Employees (Employees 


serving on, and being compensated for, standby service): Within required response 


time of 30 minutes. 


 


 Stoughton Fire Department Volunteers: Reside or work within the fire protection area 


served by the City of Stoughton Fire Department; including the City of Stoughton, the 


Town of Dunkirk, and parts of the Towns of Dunn, Rutland and Pleasant Springs. 


 


 Stoughton Area EMS Volunteers: On-Call and response time criteria are covered by 


SAEMS Bylaws which say that a person must be within 5 minutes of the ambulance 


garage while on call. 


 


3.0 Procedures 
 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


5.0 Document History 
 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Emergency Response Requirements Policy Page:   1 


 








 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Emergency Response Requirements Policy 


1.0 Purpose 
Response time is defined as the time it takes an employee to arrive at his/her place of work.  


 


2.0 Policy Details 
Response time requirements are as follows: 


 


 Police Department Non-Represented Employees (except Chief): Reside within 45 miles 


of the police department. 


 


 Police Chief: Establish residency within twelve (12) months of appointment. 


 


 Public Works Department Employees: Reside within required response time of 30 minutes 


of the City limits of Stoughton. 


 


 Stoughton Municipal Utilities Non-Represented and Represented Employees (Employees 


serving on, and being compensated for, standby service): Within required response 


time of 30 minutes. 


 


 Stoughton Fire Department Volunteers: Reside or work within the fire protection area 


served by the City of Stoughton Fire Department; including the City of Stoughton, the 


Town of Dunkirk, and parts of the Towns of Dunn, Rutland and Pleasant Springs. 


 


 Stoughton Area EMS Volunteers: On-Call and response time criteria are covered by 


SAEMS Bylaws which say that a person must be within 5 minutes of the ambulance 


garage while on call. 


 


3.0 Procedures 
 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


5.0 Document History 
 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved: 12/12/2017 


Policy Name:   Emergency Response Requirements Page:   1 


 








 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Promotion Policy Page:   1 
 


 


Promotion Policy 


1.0 Purpose 
Promotion is the movement of an employee from one position to another position having a 


higher grade level rating.   


 


2.0 Policy Details 
Effective upon appointment to a higher grade level, the employee will be compensated 


based on available budget and the compensation matrix. at the pay rate of their new 


position.  


 


If an employee's performance does not meet acceptable standards the employee will be 


removed from the position without right of appeal. The Personnel Committee, The City, or its 


designated representative, may return the employee, if it deems it appropriate, to their former 


position, or an alternate available position, if vacant, and the employee meets the job 


requirements for that alternate position. 


 


3.0 Procedures 
 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


5.0 Document History 
 


 


 


 


 


 


Formatted: Font: Century Gothic


Formatted: Font: Century Gothic


Formatted: Font: Century Gothic








 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Promotion Policy Page:   1 
 


 


Promotion Policy 


1.0 Purpose 
Promotion is the movement of an employee from one position to another position having a 


higher grade level rating.   


 


2.0 Policy Details 
Effective upon appointment to a higher grade level, the employee will be compensated 


based on available budget and the compensation matrix.  


 


If an employee's performance does not meet acceptable standards the employee will be 


removed from the position without right of appeal. The Personnel Committee, The City, or its 


designated representative, may return the employee, if it deems it appropriate, to their former 


position, or an alternate available position, if vacant, and the employee meets the job 


requirements for that alternate position. 


 


3.0 Procedures 
 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


5.0 Document History 
 


 


 


 


 


 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Accrued Sick Leave Credit for  


Retiring Employees Policy 


 


Page:   1 


 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employees Policy 


1.0 Purpose 


2.0 Policy Details 


All full-time employees who actually retire from City service and apply (with 60 days of last day 


paid) for retirement annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement System, which annuity must exceed 


$10.00 per month, shall have their sick leave credits, up to 130 days (at the time of their 


retirement) converted to a monetary value (hours of credit times normal hourly rate of pay 


received immediately prior to retirement) which shall be available toward the payment of 


health insurance premiums for the employee and their dependents, or at the employees option, 


paid out in monthly installments equal to the applicable monthly health insurance premium 


 


Forty-five (45) days of accrued sick leave will be paid out as a lump sum payment upon death 


or retirement as defined above.  Such forty-five (45) days shall be applied against the 130-day 


cap.  The remaining balance of up to 85 accrued sick days will be transferred to a Retiree Health 


Savings Plan.  


 


Employees hired after January 1, 2005, are not eligible for the forty-five (45) days lump sum 


option. 


 


There is no other payment of accrued but unused sick leave other than retirement. 


 


3.0 Procedures 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 


5.0 Document History 


 
 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Accrued Sick Leave Credit for  


Retiring Employees Policy 


 


Page:   1 


 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employees Policy 


1.0 Purpose 


2.0 Policy Details 


All full-time employees who actually retire from City service and apply (with 60 days of last day 


paid) for retirement annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement System, which annuity must exceed 


$10.00 per month, shall have their sick leave credits, up to 130 days (at the time of their 


retirement) converted to a monetary value (hours of credit times normal hourly rate of pay 


received immediately prior to retirement) which shall be available toward the payment of 


health insurance premiums for the employee and their dependents, or at the employees option, 


paid out in monthly installments equal to the applicable monthly health insurance premium 


 


 


 


There is no other payment of accrued but unused sick leave other than retirement. 


 


3.0 Procedures 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 


5.0 Document History 


 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON 


REFERENCE & BACKGROUND CHECKS POLICY 
Adopted by Council 5/10/05 


I .  P U R P O S E  
The City of Stoughton believes that hiring qualified individuals to fill positions contributes to the overall 


success of the City. Reference and background checks serve as an important part of the selection 


process. This type of information is collected as a means of promoting a safer and more productive 


work environment for current and future City employees. Background checks also help the City obtain 


additional applicant related information that helps determine the applicant’s overall employability and 


future conduct/performance, ensuring the protection of the current employees, citizens, property and 


information of the City. 


I I .  P O L I C Y  
The City may conduct a reference check on prospective employees. A reference check provides the City 


an opportunity to obtain information from other sources about the candidate’s work history, determine to 


what extent the work experience of the candidate is related to City needs and to identify job related 


concerns. problem areas. If conducted, a thorough reference check should be completed prior to making 


any offer of employment. And, an employment offer will not be given unless the City obtains sufficient 


and satisfactory references. 


The City has the option to follows this any of these procedures for volunteers or applicants for 


volunteer positions with the City (for example volunteers serving vulnerable populations, handling 


financial transactions, or representing the City with the general public). 


A. Employment Eligibility 


The City is required by law to check identity and authorization for employment in the United 


States. The Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services (BCIS) provides the I-9 form for 


the City to utilize in documenting verification of employment eligibility. This must be verified 


by the examination of acceptable documents presented by the candidate for employment and 


completion of the I-9 form within three (3) business days of hire. The I-9 form will be 


completed by the Human Resources & Risk Management City Clerk/Personnel Department. 


B. Verification of Submitted Application Information 


The City may obtain references to confirm and supplement information in the resume or 


application. Additionally, the City may seek confirmation of background data (such as dates of 


employment, salary, position and duties, education and professional licenses) and competency 


with respect to certain job-related skills (such as attendance, dependability, judgment and 


initiative). Background checks of all regular and volunteer City positions except minors. 


C. Past Employer Checks 


The City may contact a candidate’s previous employer(s). The candidate’s current employer(s) 


will only be contacted after agreement from the candidate. The Human Resources & Risk 


Management Director City Clerk or Designee will contact the candidate’s immediate 


supervisor(s). At the very least, the dates of employment and position(s) held shall be confirmed 


by the City. An attempt will be made to follow the general format on the attached reference 


check form in requesting information from references. 


D. Criminal Records 
Applicants are required to respond to questions regarding convictions and pending criminal 


charges, if applicable, on the City’s employment application.  form, and may be required to provide a 


separate listing detailing the convictions and pending charges. Pending criminal charges and 


conviction history information may not be used against candidates for employment, unless the 


Commented [GS1]: ? 


Commented [GS2]: ? 







conviction or pending criminal charge substantially relates to the circumstances of the particular 


job. In 


reviewing applicable convictions and pending charges, the City will consider the relationship 


between the conviction and the position, the nature of the conviction, the number of convictions, 


rehabilitation efforts and the applicant’s fitness for the job. 


E. National Criminal Records & Caregiver Background Checks for Applicants, Employees 


and Volunteers 


Police Officer applicants, applicants or volunteers serving vulnerable populations, who work with 


children or who qualify as a “caregiver” under Wisconsin law (Chapter HFS 12 of the Wisconsin 


Administrative Code) may have a national criminal records check screening completed, 


including a caregiver check through the Wisconsin Department of Health and Family Services (as 


required). The purpose of this criminal history check will be to determine if a prospective or 


current employee or volunteer has been convicted for a crime that affects their ability to provide 


for the safety and well-being of 


children, the elderly or individuals with disabilities. Fingerprints may be obtained by going to 


the City’s Police Department. 


F. Driving Records 


A review of driving records is required for all City positions that involve operation of a motor 


vehicle. Prior to an offer of employment or promotion to a position that requires driving, the 


City may review the records indicated below against a specific set of screening criteria to 


evaluate whether the record is acceptable, questionable or unacceptable. In addition, the 


screening may also take into account how much experience is needed, and what types of vehicles 


and/or equipment the candidate used in the past. 


The City will perform the following driving record reviews: 


1. Driver License verification: A candidate’s license will be verified to ensure that it has not 


expired, and to confirm the listed operating classes (A, B, C, D, M), endorsements (T, P, N, 


H, X) and any restrictions (i.e. air brakes, corrective lenses, etc.) 


2. Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) review: This details the accident and traffic history of a 


candidate over the previous three year period, and will be compared against the following 


MVR qualification guidelines to determine if the driving record is acceptable. 


a. Minimum Qualification Guidelines: The following are minimum driver qualification 


guidelines for consideration by the City: 


1. Minimum of three (3) years of driving experience when a position requires  Must have 


a valid Driver’s License at time of appointment and maintained during their 


incumbency. 


2. At least one (1) year of experience in the class of vehicle being operated. 


3.2. Meet the minimum posted licensing requirements for the position. 


b. Condition of Employment: It is a condition of employment for City employees who 


operate motor vehicles or equipment to have an acceptable driving record. Based on the 


Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) review, a candidate will not be considered for employment 


if any of the following have occurred during the last three year period: 


1. Conviction of a felony related to the job position. 


2. Conviction for the sale, handling or use of drugs. 


3. Cancellation, declination or non-renewal of vehicle insurance. 


4. Conviction of a drug or alcohol offense while driving. 


5. Suspension or revocation of driver’s license.  


The following violations (defined below) may impact whether a candidate obtains 


employment with the City: 







1. One or more Type A violations in the preceding three year period. 


2. Two or more Type B violations in the preceding three year period.  


2.3. Three or more Type C violations in the preceding three year period. 


3. 4 One Type B violation and two Type C violations in the preceding three year period. 


a. Type A Violations: Includes, but not limited to: driving with a revoked or suspended 


license, DWI, reckless driving, fleeing or evading police, resisting arrest, hit and run, 


failure to report an accident, involuntary manslaughter or negligent homicide using a 


motor vehicle, operating a motor vehicle for the commission of a felony, excessive 


speeding (16 mph above the posted speed limit), and drag racing. 


b. Type B Violations: All vehicle accidents, regardless of fault. 


c. Type C Violations: Includes all moving violations not classified as Type A or B: 


speeding, improper lane change, failure to yield, failure to obey a traffic signal or 


sign, and careless driving. 


d. Type D Violations: Includes all non-moving violations: illegal parking and vehicle 


defects. 


3. CDL Operators will be requested to provide a ten year employment history as part of the 


application process (per Federal DOT standard 49 CFR), and must comply with the City 


Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace Policy and consent to testing as defined by the DOT and 


City policy. 


G. Background Investigations 


A background investigation may be conducted for select City positions, due to the sensitive 


nature or type of work performed, if required by the position description. Generally, a 


background investigation attempts to gather information determined to be relevant to a 


candidate’s performance of a job. For example, the Law Enforcement Standards Board describes 


the background investigation as a search of information relevant to the issue of whether the 


candidate possesses the following five (5) Performance-Related Behavioral Characteristics: 


dependability, honesty, judgment, social stability, and assertiveness. The background 


investigation goes beyond contacting individuals identified in a candidate’s application as 


“references”, and may include any one of the following: personal data, residence information, 


family relationships, personal references, education, military service, employment, financial 


history, civil/criminal litigation history, motor vehicle and driver’s license history. The 


following City positions require background investigations as part of the selection process: 


Police Officers and Directors. 


H. Credit Checks 
City positions that have responsibility for initiating or affecting financial transactions may be 


required to submit to a credit check. These responsibilities may include, but are not limited to: 


collecting or handling cash or checks, writing checks or approving them, access to a direct 


money stream or being a fiduciary to the City. For any position where a consumer or credit 


check is required, the check will be conducted by a consumer reporting agency, and will be held 


in compliance with all federal and state statutes and collected consistent with the guidelines set 


forth by the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA). 


1. Prior to requesting the FCRA report, the City will notify the candidate or employee with a 


conspicuous written disclosure (in a document separate from the application) indicating a 


report will be requested and obtain their written authorization. 


2. The City will provide certification to the consumer reporting agency that compliance with the 


FCRA and all other applicable equal employment opportunity laws and regulations will be 


adhered to. 


3. Prior to taking an adverse action based on the report, a pre-adverse action disclosure notice 


will be provided to the candidate or employee that includes a copy of the individual’s 


Commented [GS3]: ? 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.65",  No bullets or


numbering


Formatted: Widow/Orphan control, Don't adjust space


between Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust space


between Asian text and numbers







consumer report and a copy of the Federal Trade Commission’s (FTC) document “A 


Summary of Your Rights Under the Fair Credit Reporting Act”, which includes their ability 







4.3. to dispute inaccurate information. Once notified, the candidate or employee will be given the 


opportunity to correct or explain any information included in the report before the City 


takes the adverse action. 


4. The City will provide written notification to the candidate or employee of the following: (1) 


the adverse action taken; (2) the name, address and telephone number of the consumer 


reporting agency that furnished the consumer report; (3) a statement that the consumer 


reporting agency that supplied the report did not make the decision to take the adverse action 


and cannot give specific reasons for it; (4) a notice of the individual’s right to dispute the 


accuracy or completeness of any information the agency furnished, and their right to an 


additional free consumer report from the agency upon request within 60 days. 


I. Record-keeping 


Information attained as part of the reference and background checks process will be used as part 


of the employment process and will be kept strictly confidential. The Human Resources & Risk 


Management City Clerk/Personnel Director will store and maintain the information obtained as 


part of a reference check. Any City employee who has authority to conduct a reference check 


should forward all pertinent documentation to the City Clerk/Personnel Human Resources & 


Risk Management Director. The City Clerk/Personnel Human Resources & Risk Management 


Director and the Human Resources & Risk Management Generalist 


Deputy Clerk/Confidential Secretary  will only have access to this information, which will be kept 


separate from the employee’s personnel file. 


J. Legal Restrictions 


Reference checks must be conducted in compliance with anti-discrimination laws. Therefore, 


inquiry about an applicant’s race, color, sex (including pregnancy and sexual harassment), 


national origin, age, disability, religious observation or practice, ancestry, creed, handicap, 


marital status, arrest record, conviction record, sexual orientation, membership in the National 


Guard, state defense force on any reserve component of the military force of the United States or 


this state, use or nonuse of lawful products off the employer’s premises during non-working 


hours, unfair honesty testing, genetic testing or any other protected class under federal, state or 


local law is expressly prohibited. The reference checking procedure should not question 


reference givers in a manner which elicits information specifying the candidate’s membership in 


a protected class. The only information that can be collected is that pertaining to the quality and 


quantity of work performed by the applicant, the applicant’s education, and other issues that 


impact the workplace. The City will make inquiries regarding criminal records during the  


pre-employmentemployment  or contingent offer state. However, in keeping with the 


Wisconsin Fair Employment Act, this information will not be used as a basis for denying 


employment, unless the circumstances of the 


conviction or pending criminal charge (arrest) substantially relate to the circumstances of the 


particular job applied for. 


K. Providing References 


Wisconsin law allows references to be given to prospective employers in good faith and protects 


employers from civil liability for reference provided in good faith. Per Wisconsin State Statute 


985-487(2) “An employer who, on the request of an employee or a prospective employer of the 


employee, provides a reference to that prospective employer is presumed to be acting in good 


faith and, unless lack of good faith is shown by clear and convincing evidence, is immune from 


all civil liability that may result from providing that reference. The presumption of good faith 


under this subsection may be rebutted only upon a showing by clear and convincing evidence 


that the employer knowingly provided false information in the reference, that the employer made 


Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.4", Right:  0.25",


Widow/Orphan control, Don't adjust space between


Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust space between Asian


text and numbers


Formatted: Bottom:  0.69"


Formatted: Right:  0.2", Space Before:  0 pt







the reference maliciously or that the employer made the reference in violation of s. 111.322”. 


All inquiries regarding a current or former City employee must be referred to the Human Resources 


& Risk Management City Clerk/Personnel Director, including telephone and written requests. 


Information is not provided over the telephone. The Human Resources & Risk Management 


Department. Must have a signed release from the employee. will be limited to verification of 


employment dates, position title and salary. Reference letters are prohibited from being issued on any 


current or former City employee, without prior permission from the City Clerk/Personnel Director. 


No other data or information regarding any current or former City employee, or their 


employment with the City will be furnished unless the employee authorizes the City to furnish 


this information in writing that also releases the City from liability in connection with furnishing 


of this information or the City is required by law to furnish the information. 


III. PROCEDURE 


A. Guidelines for Conducting Reference Checks 


Reference checks are conducted by the Human Resources & Risk Management Department. Any 


City employee who has authority to conduct reference checks on perspective employees shall utilize 


the reference check from after obtaining written consent from the candidate on the reference check 


waiver form. Utilizing this waiver should assist in securing more candid information from the 


applicant’s current and former employers. Human Resources & Risk Management will verify that 


the City application box that gives authorization for the City to contact references is checked..The 


following guidelines should be utilized to help prepare for the reference check. 


1. Following the interview it will be determined for which candidate(s) the Human 


Resources & Risk Management Department.is to verify references. Prior to interviewing the 


candidate, review their application for omissions and inconsistencies (i.e. gaps in employment, 


missing contact information for current and/or previous supervisors). Any inconsistencies should 


be explained and/or missing information should be provided by the candidate, upon the City’s 


request during the interview. 


2. Verify required professional licenses or certificates with the candidate. 


3. Contact the former employer(s) first. In each contact, request the name of others who 


worked with the candidate and know their performance. Contact may also be made with 


anyone who may have knowledge about the candidate, or who may direct the City to 


someone else. 


4.1. Complete the reference check form. 


s:clerks office\policies & procedures\Reference & background checks.doc 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Right:  0.25"


Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.01"


Formatted: Right:  0.15",  No bullets or numbering


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.55",  No bullets or


numbering







CITY OF STOUGHTON 


REFERENCE CHECK WAIVER 


I authorize any person contacted to provide the City of Stoughton any and all information 


regarding my employment, education and other information concerning any of the 


subjects covered by the application which may include, but not be limited to, application 


of employment, performance evaluations, work records, excluding workers 


compensation, if any, wage rates, supervisors’ comments, results of any and all non-


medical tests, disciplinary reports or letters, and complaints or allegations regarding any 


misconduct. I agree to execute release authorization forms as required by the City of 


Stoughton to request employment records from my present and/or former employer(s). I 


release and hold harmless the City of Stoughton, their officers, agents and employees, 


and the person(s) providing the information from any liability related to the providing of 


this information. 


I authorize the City of Stoughton, its officers, agents, and employees to conduct a 


background criminal check and a check with the Department of Transportation prior to 


making a decision regarding employment. I release and hold harmless the City of 


Stoughton, their officers, agents, and employees and the person(s) providing the 


information from any liability related to the performance or result of this check. I 


recognize that this information will be considered by the City of Stoughton only if it 


substantially relates to the position applied for. 


Signature Date 


Commented [GS4]: We use application. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 


REFERENCE CHECK FORM 


 


If applicable: 


1.  Verify employment dates:  


2.  Verify position title and salary.  


3.  Verify work performed.  


4.  Who did the candidate work for prior to joining the reference’s organization?  


5.  How does the candidate compare to the person who is currently performing the job? Or, 


what characteristics would you look for to replace them? 


6.  If the candidate was that good, why didn’t you try to rehire them or induce them to stay? 


7.  When there was a particularly urgent assignment, what steps did they take to get that 


done on time? 


8.  No matter how good any individual is in the job, there always seems to be some areas 


that they are better at than others. What are those areas? 


9.  Have you seen their current resume? Let me read you the part that describes their 


position with your organization. (Stop at each significant point and ask the reference for 


a comment.) 


10.  All employees don’t like all other employees. What kind of people did they have 


problems with? 


11.  How well equipped is this person to handle specific aspects of the job such as deadline 


pressures, attention to detail, and people skills? 


12.  What work and management style do they display? 


13.  Are you willing to rehire the applicant? 


Formatted: Bottom:  3.19"


Formatted: Left







CITY OF STOUGHTON 


AUTHORIZATION FOR RELEASE OF INFORMATION 


 ____________________________________________ , 
Name: First M.I. Last Date of Birth 


Residing at  _________________________________ , 


Address City 


I hereby authorize the Stoughton Police Department to release to the City of Stoughton Personnel 


Department my driving records and any pending arrest and/or conviction records for review in 


connection with my application for employment with the City of Stoughton. 


Signature 


Date 








Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Reference & Background Checks Policy  


 


Page:   1 


 


 


 


 


Policy Procedure Manual 


 


Reference & Background Checks Policy  


1.0 Purpose 


The City of Stoughton believes that hiring qualified individuals to fill positions contributes to the 


overall success of the City. Reference and background checks serve as an important part 


of the selection process. This type of information is collected as a means of promoting a 


safe and productive work environment for current and future City employees. Background 


checks also help the City obtain additional applicant related information that helps determine 


the applicant’s overall employability and future conduct/performance, ensuring the 


protection of the employees, citizens, property and information of the City. 


2.0 Policy Details 


The City may [GS1]conduct a reference check on prospective employees. A reference 


check provides the City an opportunity to obtain information from other sources about the 


candidate’s work history, determine to what extent the work experience of the candidate is 


related to City needs and to identify job related concerns. If conducted, [GS2]a thorough 


reference check should be completed prior to making any offer of employment. And, an 


employment offer will not be given unless the City obtains satisfactory references. 


The City follows this procedure for volunteers or applicants for volunteer positions with the City 


(for example volunteers serving vulnerable populations, handling financial transactions, or 


representing the City with the general public). 


A. Employment Eligibility 


The City is required by law to check identity and authorization for employment in the 


United States. The Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services (BCIS) provides the I-9 


form for the City to utilize in documenting verification of employment eligibility. This must 


be verified by the examination of acceptable documents presented by the candidate 


for employment and completion of the I-9 form within three (3) business days of hire. 


The I-9 form will be completed by the Human Resources & Risk Management 


Department. 


B. Verification of Submitted Application Information 


The City may obtain references to confirm and supplement information in the resume or 


application. Additionally, the City may seek confirmation of background data (such as 


dates of employment, salary, position and duties, education and professional licenses) 


and competency 


with respect to certain job-related skills (such as attendance, dependability, 


judgment and initiative). Background checks of all regular and volunteer City 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Reference & Background Checks Policy  


 


Page:   2 


 


positions except minors. 


C. Past Employer Checks 


The City may contact a candidate’s previous employer(s). The candidate’s current 


employer(s) will only be contacted after agreement from the candidate. The Human 


Resources & Risk Management Director or Designee will contact the candidate’s 


immediate supervisor(s). At the very least, the dates of employment and position(s) held 


shall be confirmed by the City. An attempt will be made to follow the general format on 


the attached reference check form in requesting information from references. 


D. Criminal Records 


Applicants are required to respond to questions regarding convictions and pending 


criminal charges, if applicable, on the City’s employment application. Pending criminal 


charges and conviction history information may not be used against candidates for 


employment, unless the conviction or pending criminal charge substantially relates to the 


circumstances of the particular job. In 


reviewing applicable convictions and pending charges, the City will consider the 


relationship between the conviction and the position, the nature of the conviction, the 


number of convictions, rehabilitation efforts and the applicant’s fitness for the job. 


E. National Criminal Records & Caregiver Background Checks for Applicants, Employees 


and Volunteers 


Police Officer applicants, applicants or volunteers serving vulnerable populations, who 


work with children or who qualify as a “caregiver” under Wisconsin law (Chapter HFS 12 


of the Wisconsin Administrative Code) may have a national criminal records check 


screening completed, including a caregiver check through the Wisconsin Department 


of Health and Family Services (as required). The purpose of this criminal history check will 


be to determine if a prospective or current employee or volunteer has been convicted 


for a crime that affects their ability to provide for the safety and well-being of 


children, the elderly or individuals with disabilities. Fingerprints may be obtained by 


going to the City’s Police Department. 


F. Driving Records 


A review of driving records is required for all City positions that involve operation of a 


motor vehicle. Prior to an offer of employment or promotion to a position that requires 


driving, the City may review the records indicated below against a specific set of 


screening criteria to evaluate whether the record is acceptable, questionable or 


unacceptable. In addition, the screening may also take into account how much 


experience is needed, and what types of vehicles and/or equipment the candidate 


used in the past. 


The City will perform the following driving record reviews: 


 


1. Driver License verification: A candidate’s license will be verified to ensure that it has 


not expired, and to confirm the listed operating classes (A, B, C, D, M), 


endorsements (T, P, N, H, X) and any restrictions (i.e. air brakes, corrective lenses, 


etc.) 


2. Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) review: This details the accident and traffic history of 


a candidate over the previous three-year period, and will be compared against the 


following MVR qualification guidelines to determine if the driving record is 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Reference & Background Checks Policy  


 


Page:   3 


 


acceptable. 


a. Minimum Qualification Guidelines: The following are minimum driver qualification 


guidelines for consideration by the City: 


1.  Must have a valid Driver’s License at time of appointment and 


maintained during their incumbency. 


2. Meet the minimum posted licensing requirements for the position. 


 


b. Condition of Employment: It is a condition of employment for City employees 


who operate motor vehicles or equipment to have an acceptable driving record. 


Based on the Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) review, a candidate will not be 


considered for employment if any of the following have occurred during the last 


three-year period: 


1. Conviction of a felony related to the job position. 


2. Conviction for the sale, handling or use of drugs. 


3. Cancellation, declination or non-renewal of vehicle insurance. 


4. Conviction of a drug or alcohol offense while driving. 


5. Suspension or revocation of driver’s license. 


The following violations (defined below) may impact whether a candidate obtains 


employment with the City: 


1. One or more Type A violations in the preceding three-year [GS3]period. 


2. Two or more Type B violations in the preceding three-year period.  


3. Three or more Type C violations in the preceding three-year period. 


4.  One Type B violation and two Type C violations in the preceding three-year period. 


a. Type A Violations: Includes, but not limited to: driving with a revoked or suspended 


license, DWI, reckless driving, fleeing or evading police, resisting arrest, hit and run, 


failure to report an accident, involuntary manslaughter or negligent homicide using 


a motor vehicle, operating a motor vehicle for the commission of a felony, excessive 


speeding (16 mph above the posted speed limit), and drag racing. 


b. Type B Violations: All vehicle accidents, regardless of fault. 


c. Type C Violations: Includes all moving violations not classified as Type A or B: 


speeding, improper lane change, failure to yield, failure to obey a traffic signal or 


sign, and careless driving. 


d. Type D Violations: Includes all non-moving violations: illegal parking and vehicle 


defects. 


CDL Operators will be requested to provide a ten-year employment history as part of the 


application process (per Federal DOT standard 49 CFR), and must comply with the City 


Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace Policy and consent to testing as defined by the DOT 


and City policy. 


G. Background Investigations 


A background investigation may be conducted for select City positions, due to the 


sensitive nature or type of work performed, if required by the position description. 


Generally, a background investigation attempts to gather information determined 


to be relevant to a candidate’s performance of a job. For example, the Law 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Reference & Background Checks Policy  


 


Page:   4 


 


Enforcement Standards Board describes the background investigation as a search of 


information relevant to the issue of whether the candidate possesses the following five 


(5) Performance-Related Behavioral Characteristics: dependability, honesty, 


judgment, social stability, and assertiveness. The background investigation goes 


beyond contacting individuals identified in a candidate’s application as 


“references”, and may include any one of the following: personal data, residence 


information, family relationships, personal references, education, military service, 


employment, financial history, civil/criminal litigation history, motor vehicle and 


driver’s license history. The following City positions require background 


investigations as part of the selection process: Police Officers and Directors. 


H. Credit Checks 
City positions that have responsibility for initiating or affecting financial transactions 


may be required to submit to a credit check. These responsibilities may include, but are 


not limited to: collecting or handling cash or checks, writing checks or approving 


them, access to a direct money stream or being a fiduciary to the City. For any 


position where a consumer or credit check is required, the check will be conducted 


by a consumer reporting agency, and will be held in compliance with all federal and 


state statutes and collected consistent with the guidelines set forth by the Fair Credit 


Reporting Act (FCRA). 


1. Prior to requesting the FCRA report, the City will notify the candidate or employee with 


a conspicuous written disclosure (in a document separate from the application) 


indicating a report will be requested and obtain their written authorization. 


2. The City will provide certification to the consumer reporting agency that compliance 


with the FCRA and all other applicable equal employment opportunity laws and 


regulations will be adhered to. 


3. Prior to taking an adverse action based on the report, a pre-adverse action disclosure 


notice will be provided to the candidate or employee that includes a copy of the 


individual’s consumer report and a copy of the Federal Trade Commission’s (FTC) 


document “A Summary of Your Rights Under the Fair Credit Reporting Act”, which 


includes their ability to dispute inaccurate information. Once notified, the candidate or 


employee will be given the opportunity to correct or explain any information included 


in the report before the City takes the adverse action. 


4. The City will provide written notification to the candidate or employee of the 


following: (1) 


the adverse action taken; (2) the name, address and telephone number of the 


consumer reporting agency that furnished the consumer report; (3) a statement that 


the consumer reporting agency that supplied the report did not make the decision to 


take the adverse action and cannot give specific reasons for it; (4) a notice of the 


individual’s right to dispute the 


accuracy or completeness of any information the agency furnished, and their right to 


an additional free consumer report from the agency upon request within 60 days. 


I. Record-keeping 


Information attained as part of the reference and background checks process will be 


used as part of the employment process and will be kept strictly confidential. The 


Human Resources & Risk Management Director will store and maintain the information 


obtained as part of a reference check. Any City employee who has authority to 


conduct a reference check should forward all pertinent documentation to the Human 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Reference & Background Checks Policy  


 


Page:   5 


 


Resources & Risk Management Director. The Human Resources & Risk Management 


Director and the Human Resources & Risk Management Generalist will only have 


access to this information, which will be kept separate from the employee’s personnel 


file. 


J. Legal Restrictions 


Reference checks must be conducted in compliance with anti-discrimination laws. 


Therefore, inquiry about an applicant’s race, color, sex (including pregnancy and 


sexual harassment), national origin, age, disability, religious observation or practice, 


ancestry, creed, handicap, 


marital status, arrest record, conviction record, sexual orientation, membership in the 


National Guard, state defense force on any reserve component of the military force of 


the United States or this state, use or nonuse of lawful products off the employer’s 


premises during non-working hours, unfair honesty testing, genetic testing or any other 


protected class under federal, state or local law is expressly prohibited. The 


reference checking procedure should not question reference givers in a manner 


which elicits information specifying the candidate’s membership in a protected class. 


The only information that can be collected is that pertaining to the quality and 


quantity of work performed by the applicant, the applicant’s education, and other 


issues that impact the workplace. The City will make inquiries regarding criminal records 


during the  


pre-employment or contingent offer state. However, in keeping with the Wisconsin 


Fair Employment Act, this information will not be used as a basis for denying 


employment, unless the circumstances of the 


conviction or pending criminal charge (arrest) substantially relate to the circumstances 


of the particular job applied for. 


K. Providing References 


Wisconsin law allows references to be given to prospective employers in good faith and 


protects employers from civil liability for reference provided in good faith. Per Wisconsin 


State Statute 985-487(2) “An employer who, on the request of an employee or a 


prospective employer of the employee, provides a reference to that prospective 


employer is presumed to be acting in good faith and, unless lack of good faith is 


shown by clear and convincing evidence, is immune from all civil liability that may 


result from providing that reference. The presumption of good faith under this 


subsection may be rebutted only upon a showing by clear and convincing evidence 


that the employer knowingly provided false information in the reference, that the 


employer made 


the reference maliciously or that the employer made the reference in violation of s. 


111.322”. 


All inquiries regarding a current or former City employee must be referred to the 


Human Resources & Risk Management Director, including telephone and written 


requests. Information is not provided over the telephone. The Human Resources & Risk 


Management Department. Must have a signed release from the employee. 


Reference letters are prohibited from being issued on any current or former City 


employee, without prior permission from the City Clerk/Personnel Director. 


 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Reference & Background Checks Policy  


 


Page:   6 


 


No other data or information regarding any current or former City employee, or their 


employment with the City will be furnished unless the employee authorizes the City to 


furnish this information in writing that also releases the City from liability in connection with 


furnishing of this information or the City is required by law to furnish the information. 


 


3.0 Procedures 


Guidelines for Conducting Reference Checks 


Reference checks are conducted by the Human Resources & Risk Management Department. 


Human Resources & Risk Management will verify that the City application box that gives 


authorization for the City to contact references is checked. The following guidelines should 


be utilized to help prepare for the reference check. 


1. Following the interview, it will be determined for which candidate(s) the Human 


Resources & Risk Management Department.is to verify references.  


2. Contact the former employer(s) first. In each contact, request the name of others who 


worked with the candidate and know their performance. Contact may also be made 


with anyone who may have knowledge about the candidate, or who may direct the 


City to someone else. 


3. Complete the reference check form. 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Department: Human Resources & Risk Management Council Approved:  


Policy Name:   Reference & Background Checks Policy  


 


Page:   7 


 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


REFERENCE CHECK FORM 


 


If applicable: 


1.  Verify employment dates:  


2.  Verify position title and salary.  


3.  Verify work performed.  


4.  Who did the candidate work for prior to joining the reference’s organization? 


5.  How does the candidate compare to the person who is currently performing the job? Or, 


what characteristics would you look for to replace them? 


6.  If the candidate was that good, why didn’t you try to rehire them or induce them to stay? 


7.  When there was a particularly urgent assignment, what steps did they take to get that 


done on time? 


8.  No matter how good any individual is in the job, there always seems to be some areas that 


they are better at than others. What are those areas? 


9.  Have you seen their current resume? Let me read you the part that describes their 


position with your organization. (Stop at each significant point and ask the reference for a 


comment.) 


10.  All employees don’t like all other employees. What kind of people did they have 


problems with? 


11.  How well equipped is this person to handle specific aspects of the job such as deadline 


pressures, attention to detail, and people skills? 


12.  What work and management style do they display? 


13.  Are you willing to rehire the applicant? 


 


5.0 Document History 


 
 





